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|8treet (Route ;A),lgtarting'at the Beverly line and ending at the Hamilton

AT, claflin-Richards House -~ built in 16§§ with a 1673 addition; already

(Check One)
Excellent X] Good - Fair Deteriorated Rui u d
CONDITION = n R ! O iorate [:] vins _ [T} Unexpase
(Check One} . - {Check One}
. Altered ‘ ’ ~ K] Unaltered - K] Moved - & Original Site

|éLapboard, ~wood frame construction, with the exception of the brick Lummus

|brel Toof colomial in 1760; two large chimneys set in from gides of

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL(if known)} PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Wenham Historic Distfict é%t@nds for 1.8 miles along hoth sides of Main

line. The road runs“in a northerly direction for about one mile, then, curv-
ing as it enters the.centet of town, continues on to the Hamilton line in a
north-easterly direction. State Route 13 is a well traveled highway through
the center of this small, tree-shaded New England village.

Entrance to Wenham fxom the south is marked by two striking landscape fear
tures. The shores of Wemham Lake appear on the westerly side, while to the
cast, Pond Hill rises sharply, then falls to flood pkain level. A series of
low hills and ridges continue along this side of the road as far as the center
of town. Beyond this point, both sides are completely level. Prominent open
space features betweeh Pond Hill and the town center include two golf courses)
both of which ‘slope upward to ridges glightly beyond the District boundaries.
Betweéen these golf courses is located the town cemetery. Bordering the street
is O0ld Burial Hill, its use dating from the 17th century. On the westerly
side of the road, open areas appear at intervals, including a town park of
13.5 acres.

The Historic District contains 89 buildings, +the majority of which are
located rather close to the street. Buildings other than residences include
the Town Hall, a fire and police station, public library, the First Church,
the Wenham Historical Association & Museum, a tea house and a dress shop, the
post office, a real estate office, a small grocery, a sport shop and an office
building. Except for the church and town hall, all are very small in scale.
The form of Main Street is typical of a small New England town in which may
be traced a pattern of évolution from ééflymﬁégiﬁhiﬁ§§“33'a'fafﬁiﬁg”édmmunity.

~ Wenham Historic District represents three centurieg.of architecture, in-
¢luding buildings ‘of a wide variety of styles, from the 17th century through
the :19th century, with modifications of the more formal and conventional city
styles to fit the needs of a rural community. Main Street's houses of all
periods are modest in size, seldom pure in style, a mix of features often al-
tered to suit the needs of successive generations. ’
'~ - Architecturally important buildings include the following. (All are of

Tavern.)

submitted to the National Register.

John Solart, Sr. House - c. 1670; ridge roof, center chimney with gable
end to the street; enlarged in 1696 and again in 1740; five bays wide and one
bay deep. :

Richard Hutton House =~ ¢. 1679; originally one room; enlarged to two-

and 1870's, house now has Greek Revival pediments on end gables ahd jsf‘
bays wide with covered center entrance on facade; two small chimneyéf =
rear slope of ridge roof. S /

lobbs House — core of house built in 1688, incorporated into ]

five ' bays wide and two deep, with simple pedimented and pilasteréa cent&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ#
trance. L S B S L
Ebenezer Batchelder, Sr. House ~ early 18th- cemtury with two iqﬁé o]
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atory, two rooms with center chimney. Due to alterations in 1726, 1745, 1842
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE.
1

Wenham Historic District presents the plcture of a typlcal old New Eng-
land main street with village green, essentially unchanged durlng the ‘great-
er 5&5% of its long history. -Its atmosphere is of a semi=-rural resldentlal
community, yet many characteristics of its early beginnings as a completely
rural agricultural settlement are retained. Several factors unite the in-
dividual buildings in'this area, which is defined by natural boundaries. Of
great importance is the ‘continuous thread of higtory which shows a pattern
of participation in the significant events of town, state and nation as they
have occurred during the more than 325 years of Wenham's existence. Of eque
1mportance is. arxchitecture, but not in the usual sense of numerous buildings
of the.same period or style. Rather the arca is important because of its
architectural variety, a quite unusual picture of changing. styles covering

a span of: three centuries. Many buildings were the homes of craftsmen who
carried on small local industries: millers, tanners, shoemaKers, blacksmiths
wheelwrights, carpenters, weavers and spinners. Other residents were bee-—
keepers, farmers, shopkeepers or innkeepers. Occasionally more ambitious
businesses were conducted in buildings now destroyed, ineluding.at;least
two shoe manufactories.

The main street of the town was originally an Indian path, sklrtlng the
shores of the Great Pond (Wenham Lake). This area was the flshlng and hunt-
ing ground as well as the home of Naumkeag Indians from the Algonquln tribe,
an agricultural people who left evidence of their occupation of the land
near the pond. Large numbers of stone implements have been found, and re-
mains of their hillocks, planted with corn and fertilized with alewives
from the stream running to the lake, can be seen upon the nearby golf. coursdg

White settlement of the area began in 1635 with grants of land to the
"0ld Planters" along the now North Beverly shore, follewed shortly by grants
to other settlers who spread northward along the old "Bay Path". In 1638,
Hugh P;tér,,pastot of the church in Salem, preached a sermon of encourage-
ment to prospective Wenham settlers from a small hill beside the lake, a
spot now commemorated by a plaque. Peter, politically involved with Oliver
Cromwell before coming to Salem, later returned to England where he con-
tinued his association with Cromwell as a chaplain and as a famous. preacher
among the Puritans. In 1643 Wenhawm was establ%shed as a. town by the @General
court. h

Topography not only influenced the choice. of site. for the early. settle-
ment but very likely favored as well the location of the entlre Bay. Path
between Salem and Newburyport as it left the coast to cut inland, follow1ng
Indian pathways to connect early land grants around .the pond with neighbor-
ing settlements to the north. Three half-milestones dated 1710 still re~
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7. TPhysical Appearance (continued)

Dr, Samuel Dodge House - <. 1804; Federal style with small center chimney;
gable end to street; center entrance on five bay facade.

Lummus Tavern - 1826 late Federal style; only old brick structure in the
Digtrict. Excellent example of stage coach inn of the pericd with Ffour end
chimneys set in the front and rear slopes of the broad ridge roof; arched cen-
ter entrance with fanlight; opiginal kitchen wing to the rear.

Town Hall — modified Itallan Villa style; main center block, with arched
second floor windows, protrudes “two bays from two large side wings; latter
have wooden quoins.

Other nineteenth century buildings include early to mid-century countxry
gtyle farmhouse "colonials" (many with Greek Revival features), two mid-century
mansard style, several in the carpenter Gothic style (one an exceptionally
beautiful example) and a large variety of mixed Victorian styles with Greek
Revival or Gothic features. 60% of the -buildings along Main Street were built
by 1200. With a few exceptions, buildings in the area are in excellent condi-
tion. Buildings and grounds are well maintained and enhance the natural charm
and beauty of the entire town.

GPO 921.724
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11y _important associations. The Claflin-Richards House was built in 1662 by

.~ The Hobbs House (1688) at the, torner of Monument Sguare and Main Street was|

Jduring the war. The house was later occupied by Deacon Moses Fgster, a town

{Number all entries)

i
WENHAM HISTORIC DISTRIc]ar:j

8. Significance (continued) Ay

RN P N
main in place on the easterly side of Main Street indi&éﬁigﬁiﬁk #the road, at
an early date, followed along below the ridge line to the east and avoided the
great swamplands to the west. These half-milestones indicate distances to
Salem, Boston, Ipswich and Newburyport.

Not far from the lake iz the town cemetery, with its old Burial Hill promi-
nently located beside the roadway. Though the hill was probably used for thisg
purpose from earliest settlement, first mention as to its use and care appears
in the Town Records of 168l. The earliest legible gravestone is dated 1713.

Use was continually made of the pond area for recreational purposes. Early
18th century town records are filled with regulations as to its use and the
breservation of common rights. The beauty of the lake and its profusion of
fish and water fowl attracted not only local residents but also summer visitors
and travelers from abroad. By the time of the Revolution, political and liter-
ary figures were familiar with the area. In 1774 General Gage changed his resi
dence from Boston to Danvers and made frequent excursions to nearby Wenham Lake
for rides on a "pleasure barge”.

Little occurred to disturb the serenity of the lake until the coming of the
ice industry in the mid-19th century. Beginning with the construction of ice
houses in 1842, Wenham Lake ice became internationally famous as it was shipped
all over the world. So great was the demand for this ice that an imitation was
marketed from a lake in Norway renamed Wenham Lake., In 1873 fire destroyed
most of the ice plant and only local markets were supplied for the remainder of
the century. BAlmost no trace of this industry remains today.

Twe ether sites within the District serve today as reminders of Wenham's
past. Pingree Field, now a park of 13 acres, was, during the Civil War period,
a principle part of Camp Lander. 130 Wenham men served in thisg war. During the
late 19th century, horse cars were a familiar mode of transportation. A small
grassy plet in the center of town is the site on which the Naumkeag Street Rails
road, having received permission to extend its line into Wenham, evected a housk
for the cars and a stable for forty horses. The line proved to be most profitar
ble and was one of the last to be discontinued.
Of the early houses still standing on Main Street, a number have particulark

Robert MacClaflin, with an addition in 1673 for the use of the Rev. Joseph Ger-
rish. This house has pPreviocusly been submitted to the National Register,

e Richard Hutton House {c. 1679), at 185 Main Street, was the home of one
of the early settlers of the town. Hutton was seven times a selectman and ac-
tive in other town affairs in the latter half of the 17th century. Occupying
the house in the late 18th century was Dr. Daniel Killam., He was a member of
both branches of the General Court, member of the Governor's Council, political
friend of John Quincy Adams and of Timothy Pickering and one of the founders of
the American Academy of Arts and Sciences.

in 1760, the home of Nathaniel Brown, a justice of the peace and long active in
town affairs in bre-revolutionary times, a loyalist who remained An Wenham

} (continued)
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8. Significance {continued) p.3

clerk for many years and representative to the General Court during the 1830's|
Henry Hobbs acguired the house in 1865 and operated an adjoining harness shop.

The Lummus Tavern of 1826, located at 188 Main Street, was an important
inn on the road from Salem o Newburyport., "It included a cluster of buildings
geared to the comfort of stagecoacli passerngers and the care of vehicles and
horses. The old tavern sign with its symbol of Masonry still exists and pointg
out the ugse of the tavern for Masonic meetings. The house also served as a
post office between 1830 and 1837 and sometime later as a district school.
™~ The First Church in Wenham, at Main and Arbor Streets, was organized in
1644 in what was probably a very rude.and temporary meéeting house. The present
chiurch building was constructed in 18@3, the fifth in a series of meetlnghouse?
erected to keep pace with the changing needs of the community. Although in
1833 geparation of church and state became a law of the Commonwealth, town
meetings continued to be held in the church until 1853. In 1815 a Sunday Schog
was organized, one of the first in the country. The steeple elock has been
serving as a town clogk since 1867.
~ Wenham Town Hall, 134 Main Street, was constructed in 13$3, the first
bulldlng to ‘be built spe01flcally for the use of town meetings. It dénhtained
a large meetlng room on the second floor, while the first floor housed the
town offices as well as a schoolroom. The latter room became available for
use as a public library in 1885,

A geries of buildings deserve mention because of local historical interest
These are located in the business section of the town center and include the
¥ Perklns Drug Store (1877) now a grocery, the Stanton-Porter grocery store
(1 97) now a dwelling, the old fire house of 1849 and the "new" fire house of
l%pl the latter two still used for other town facilities.

The town of Wenham voted this district a local Hlstor%?~Q® T 2 rch,
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